
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport 

 
Date: Friday, 5 March 2021 
 
Time:  10.30 am 
 
Place: Remotely via Zoom – https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil  
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley      Direct Dial: 0115 876 4302 
 
1  Apologies for absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
Last meeting held on 11 December 2020 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 8 

4  Transforming Cities Fund cycling programme  
Presentation by Principal Transport Planner 
 

 

5  Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board update  
Report of Joint Officer Steering Group 
 

9 - 18 

6  Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan and Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham Waste Local Plan update  
Report of Joint Officer Steering Group 
 

19 - 20 

7  Transport update  
Report of Joint Officer Steering Group 
 

21 - 36 

8  Work Plan  
For noting / discussion 
 

37 - 38 

9  Dates of future meetings  
To agree to meet at 10.30am on the following Friday’s: 
 
2021   2022 
11 June  11 March 
10 September 
10 December 

 

Public Document Pack



If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



 

1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at remotely and livestreamed on YouTube on 11 
December 2020 from 10.30 am - 12.15 pm 
 
Membership  

Present  

Nottingham City Council 

Councillor Linda Woodings (Chair) 

Councillor Michael Edwards 

Councillor Sally Longford 

 

Councillor Dave Liversidge 

 

Nottinghamshire County Council 

Councillor Gordon Wheeler (Vice Chair) 

Councillor Eric Kerry 

Councillor Phil Rostance 

 

 

 

(for minutes 12 to 18 inclusive only) 

 

(substitute for Councillor Williams) 

  
Absent  
Councillor Jim Creamer 
Councillor Adele Williams 

 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Nottingham City Council 
 
James Ashton - Transport Strategy Manager 
Chris Carter - Head of Transport Strategy 
Matt Gregory - Head of Planning Strategy and Building Control 
Mark Leavesley - Governance Officer 
Peter McAnespie - Partnerships and Local Plans Manager 
 
Nottinghamshire County Council 
 
Sally Gill - Group Manager, Planning 
Ken Harrison - Programme Director (HS2) 
Kevin Sharman - Team Manager, Transport 
   
Others   
   
Richard Mann - Rail Programme Manager ) Midlands Connect 
Stephen Pauling - Interim Head of Rail and HS2 )  

 
12  Apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Williams (City) – other business 
Matt Neal (County) 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport - 11.12.20 

2 

13  Declarations of interests 
 

None. 
 
14  Minutes 

 
(a) Confirmation 
 
The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2020 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
(b) Matters arising 
 
Further to minute 7, it was stated that both Councils and the Joint Officers Steering 
Group had all submitted individual responses to the Government’s ‘Planning for the 
Future’ White Paper consultation prior to the deadline of 31 October 2020. 
 
15  Midlands Engine Rail: Strategy update 

 
The Committee received a presentation from Midlands Connect representatives 
Richard Mann (Rail Programme Manager) and Stephen Pauling (Interim Head of Rail 
and HS2), regarding rail connectivity proposals between Nottingham and other cities. 
 
During discussion, and in response to questions, the following comments were made 
and additional information given: 
 
i. the potential for an underpass to prevent ‘bottle-necks’ on the Nuneaton to 

Coventry line is being investigated; 
 

ii. discussions with Network Rail are ongoing regarding a flyover of the East Coast 
Mainline on the Nottingham to Lincoln/Newark proposed line; 

 
iii. to address capacity issues between Trent Junction and Nottingham, a new 

northern route, via Trowell, is proposed, potentially doubling the current 
capacity; 
 

iv. consideration should be given to utilising existing sub-urban networks to shorten 
journey times; 
 

v. the National Infrastructure Commission’s National Rail Assessment Report is 
expected shortly into rail investment in the Midlands and the North, including 
recommendations on HS2/Toton. 

 
Resolved 
 
(1) to note the presentation and that the thanks of the Committee to Messrs 

Mann and Pauling for the informative presentation be recorded; 
 
(2) that the Transport Strategy Manager be requested to include an update 

regarding the station at Faraday Road in the ‘Transport update’ report 
submitted to the next meeting. 

 

Page 4



Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport - 11.12.20 

3 

16  East Midlands Development Corporation 
 

The Committee received a presentation by Ken Harrison, Programme Director, HS2 
(County), into a regional collaboration for growth around HS2 and other infrastructure 
investment by Government. The main point were as follows: 
 
i. the East Midlands Development Corporation programme has its origins in the 

HS2 and rail growth strategy, and is a regional collaboration delivery vehicle, 
working alongside HS2 investment to unlock regional potential, including road, 
rail and other improvements; 
 

ii. the Government requested Midland Engine lead the process, and a group, 
including all local authorities, the university sector and 3 local enterprise 
partnerships (Lincs, Leics and D2N2) was formed to oversee it; 
 

iii. the main outcome of the programme is to put the East Midlands on the 
Government’s ‘investment map’ to be able to build capacity in the region as it is 
currently bottom of the list for investment vs population in the UK; 
 

iv. the current focus is on 3 investment opportunities for ‘living and working’, 
‘making’ and ‘moving’ – Toton and Chetwynd Barracks site (to be 
decommissioned in 2024), Ratcliffe Power Station site (the last coal-powered 
station of its type in the UK, to be decommissioned in 2025) and East Midlands 
Airport (the largest freight handling airport in the UK); 
 

v. major projects are planned for the sites by 2045: 
 

  Toton and Chetwynd Barracks (‘living and working’) – creation of 6,000 jobs 
and next generation net-zero living, with green and blue corridors, in at least 
4,500 homes; 

  Ratcliffe Power Station (‘making’) – development of the site for industry and 
innovation; 

  East Midlands Airport (‘moving’) – expansion of capacity; 
 

vi. overall, the regional proposals will create 85,000 jobs, provide 4,500 new 
homes and lead to £4.8billion of Gross Value Added (GVA); 
 

vii. between 12 October to 22 November 2020, a virtual public engagement was 
carried out, which had 4,379 individual ‘visitors’. There were also 38,000 leaflet-
drops to homes in the region. 

 

The Committee stated that the proposed numbers of jobs and homes was excellent 
and would be good for the regional economies. 
 
In response to questions, Mr Harrison stated the following: 
 

 regarding connectivity between the proposed developments and regional 
villages and outlying districts not currently very well provided for in terms of 
public transport, a Connectivity Technical Working Group, consisting of 
officers and government agencies, was looking at inclusive growth and 
connectivity across the whole region; 
 

Page 5



Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport - 11.12.20 

4 

 in respect of possible runway extensions at East Midlands Airport, while Mr 
Harrison acknowledged that this was not his area of expertise, his 
understanding was that the existing runways were sufficient for any current 
proposals; 
 

 if the HS2/Toton report was not favourable when published, an options plan 
is in place, looking at governance and infrastructure for any required 
changes. 

 

Resolved to note the information, and that the thanks of the Committee to Mr 
Harrison for the informative presentation, be recorded. 
 
17  Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board update 

 
Matt Gregory, Head of Planning Strategy and Building Control (City), presented the 
report, which updated the Committee on the work of the Greater Nottingham Joint 
Planning Advisory Board, including the minutes of its meeting held on 30 June 2020 
and a copy of its response to the Government’s ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper 
consultation. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
18  Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan and Nottinghamshire and 

Nottingham Waste Local Plan update 
 

Sally Gill, Group Manager Planning (County), presented the report, detailing the 
latest position in respect of the Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan and 
Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan. 
 
Ms Gill stated that the deadline for comments on the published main modifications to 
the Minerals Plan is 08 January 2021, following which the main modifications and any 
comments will be submitted to the Inspector for approval.  
 
Also, a meeting of the Waste Local Plan Members Working Group will be scheduled 
for early 2021 to discuss comments received on the ‘Issues and Options’ consultation 
earlier in 2020, after which will be completion of a report of consultation, updating of 
the ‘Waste Needs Assessment’ and preparation of a ‘Draft Plan’ for consultation. 
 
In response to questions and comments, Ms Gill stated the following: 
 
i. a gravel extraction site is proposed at Barton-in-Fabis; 

 
ii. the Members Working Group will be an opportunity to investigate waste 

disposal, and more carbon-neutral uses, such as the de-carbonising of the gas 
supply. 

 
Resolved 
 
(1) to note the report; 
 
(2) that Ms Gill forward to members the link to the main modifications 

consultation. 

Page 6



Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport - 11.12.20 

5 

 
19  Transport update 

 
James Ashton, Transport Strategy Manager (City), presented the report, updating the 
Committee on transport related matters across the Greater Nottingham area, 
including those arising as a result of the pandemic, the D2N2 Local Walking and 
Cycling Infrastructure Plan, and recent funding awards. 
 
In response to questions and comments, the following additional information was 
given: 
 
i. in respect of the Government’s E-scooter scheme currently being trialled in the 

City, the scooters have GPS and automatically switch off once the city boundary 
is crossed. However, this does not stop people carrying them to outlying areas 
around the City. If a scooter is found outside the City, the team running the 
scheme can be contacted at Wind Mobility customer services, telephone 0330 
133 32 31 or email customer.uk@wind.co, to collect them. This is also the 
contact details to report any anti-social behaviour by users of the scooters; 
 

 The team also collect any scooter that requires a replacement battery and 
returns it to the appropriate collection point; 
 

ii. in respect of the following, Mr Ashton will contact the appropriate member once 
he has the relevant information / to discuss further: 
 

 cycle routes in St Ann’s; 

 why there is no definitive finish date in respect of the Clifton Bridge works; 

 the potential impact of the pandemic / working from home on commuting 
and local transport plans in the future. 

 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
20  Work programme 

 
The Committee noted the work programme and requested it be amended to include 
an item on the East Midlands Rail Franchise. 
 
21  Date of next meeting 

 
It was noted that the next meeting will be held at 10.30am on Friday 05 March 2021, 
either at Loxley House, Station Street, or remotely via Zoom (depending on the 
pandemic situation at the time) 
 

Page 7

mailto:customer.uk@wind.co


This page is intentionally left blank



Meeting:  
Date:  
From:  

Joint Committee on Strategic Planning and Transport  
05 March 2020  
Joint Officer Steering Group 

 

Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board Update  

 

1  Summary  

 

1.1 The Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board (JPAB) oversees the 

preparation of aligned Local Plans across Greater Nottingham, and the 

implementation of projects funded through the partnership. This report 

updates the Joint Committee on the work of JPAB, and other strategic 

planning matters within the remit of the Committee.  

 

2  Background  

 

2.1  The last meeting of JPAB was held on 15 December 2020. The latest 

available minutes are from the meeting held on 22 September 20202020, and 

these are appended to this report (appendix 1).  

 

2.2  A summary of the main issues discussed at the 22 September meeting is 

provided below, updated as necessary.  

 

2.3  The JPAB received a presentation from John King of Rushcliffe Borough 

Council outlining the findings of the Greater Nottingham Green & Blue 

Infrastructure Study (Phase 1).  Work is ongoing to commission part 2 of the 

study, which will be embedded in the new Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan. 

 

2.4 JPAB also considered a report on progress with Strategic Plan preparation in 

Greater Nottingham.  

 

2.5  Consultation on the growth Options document closed on 14 September, and 

around 4000 individual comments have bene received.  A new project plan 

and timetable is in preparation, to reflect delays caused by Coronavirus.  This 

will be reported to JPAB in due course. 

 

2.6 It was noted that Erewash BC’s consultation on a separate “Options for 

Growth” document covering their Borough only had also concluded, and the 

Ashfield DC have commissioned evidence supporting work, and are in the 

process of reviewing the implications of the current government consultations, 

in particular the implication of the proposed changes to the standard 

methodology. 

2.7 JPAB resolved to hold two workshops in early 2021 to consider an 

appropriate strategic planning strategy for Greater Nottingham, taking into 

account the representations received on the Growth Options Consultation.  

The first of these was held on 19 January 2021, and matters discussed 

included the vision and objectives of the plan, the potential scale of growth, 

key constraints and opportunities and infrastructure provision.  It also 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



considered the consultation options, and a consensus emerged around a 

strategy based on firstly sustainable urban development, and secondly key 

opportunity sites at Toton/Chetwynd and Ratcliffe upon Trent. 

2.8  The second workshop is to be held 24 February 2021, and a verbal update 

will be given to Joint Committee. 

 

2.9 Update reports were also presented, on the Waste and Minerals Local Plans, 

on Homes England Capacity Funding Projects Monitoring.  

 

2.10  The meeting agenda papers are available to view at 

http://www.gnplan.org.uk/about-gnpp/joint-planning-advisory-board-meetings/.  

 

3  Recommendation  

 

3.1  It is recommended that the Joint Committee note the contents of this report.  

 

4  Background papers referred to in compiling this report  

 

4.1  JPAB Papers, 15 December 2020  

 

 

 

Contact Officer  

 

Matt Gregory  

Head of Planning Strategy and Building Control  

Nottingham City Council  

 

matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

0115 876 3981 

 

  

Page 10

mailto:matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1 

 

 

ITEM 3 MINUTES OF THE GREATER NOTTINGHAM JOINT PLANNING 

ADVISORY BOARD (JPAB) MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 22 

SEPTEMBER 2020 VIA MS TEAMS 

 

 

PRESENT 

 

Ashfield: Councillor M Relf 

Erewash: Councillor M Powell 

Gedling: Councillor J Hollingsworth 

Nottingham City: Councillor L Woodings, Councillor M Edwards 

Nottinghamshire County: Councillor T Harper (Chair) 

Rushcliffe: Councillor R Upton 

 

Officers in Attendance 

 

Broxtowe: Ruth Hyde; Mark Thompson 

Derbyshire County: Steve Buffery 

Erewash: Steve Birkinshaw 

Gedling: Alison Gibson 

Growth Point: Matthew Gregory; Peter McAnespie 

Nottingham City: Paul Seddon 

Nottinghamshire County: Sally Gill 

Rushcliffe: David Mitchell 

 

Observers 

David Bainbridge  

Robert Galij  

Andrew Bamber  

Page 11



Dave Lawson  

Kelvin Humphreys 

N. Corbishley  

Paul Stone  

Tom Genway  

Caolan Gaffney  

Angela Smedley  

Steve Freek  

 

Apologies 

Derbyshire County: Councillor T King 

 

1. Introductions and Apologies 

 Councillor T Harper (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting, which 

was virtual (and recorded) due to Covid-19 restrictions and apologies 

were noted. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 There were no declarations of interest. 

 

3.  Approval of Minutes of the Last Meeting and Matters Arising 

 The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 June 2020 were 

approved as recorded. 

 

4. Government Consultations – (1) Planning for the Future White Paper 

and (2) Changes to the current planning system (Matt Gregory) 

4.1 MG reported that the MHCLG published its much anticipated White Paper 

on 6 August to introduce changes to the planning system.  Consultation 

on the White Paper would close on 31 October.  There is also a separate 

consultation for a revised standard methodology for housing need. The 

recommendation for JPAB is to consider the Planning for the Future White 

Paper, with the preparation of a joint response delegated to the ESG for 

matters of strategic interest, where there is a consensus view. 

4.2 MG proceeded with a short slide presentation outlining the main 

proposals.  Section 4 of the report which covered consultation on the 

Page 12



proposed standard methodology and its implications for individual 

councils. 

4.3 The key points to note were: 

 Government’s intention to speed up the planning process. 

 Identify land in the Local Plan for the following three development 
categories:  

o Growth 
o Renewal 
o Protected 

 

 Local Plans would have a simplified examination procedure.  Local 
development management policies to be replaced by nationally set 
policies.  Duty to Co-operate to be removed.   

 The Local Plan is currently produced every five years but a new 30 
month deadline is proposed to ensure that there is enough land for 
housing, subject to new statutory requirements.  Sustainability 
Appraisal to be replaced with a simpler and more transparent 
process to meet the requirements of law. 

 S106 to be replaced with a new levy capturing land value uplift 
which will also apply to developments built under permitted 
development rights.   

 A revised and mandatory standard methodology to ensure that 
there will be sufficient housing in areas with affordability issues. 

 Large sites to be split between several developers offering different 
housing products.  Planning application phases, housing delivery 
and sales would be faster.  Planning applications where required 
will be streamlined through a greater focus at the plan making 
stage.  There will be penalties imposed where councils fail to 
determine within guidelines. 

 Each Council to appoint a Chief Officer for design and place-
making. 

 

4.4 MG asked Members to consider the draft comments at Appendix 1 to 

respond to the Government’s White Paper. 

4.5 TH thought the comments were of good quality. 

4.6 MP was mindful that there may only a response from JPAB and not from 

individual councils.  He thanked MG for the presentation and asked who 

might be responding on behalf of JPAB. 

4.7 LW noted that the current process is lengthy, but there is less funding 

being provided by government.  The White Paper did not appear to offer a 

simpler or faster system.  She continued to point out that the lack of 

housing delivery could not be laid at the door of the planning system, as 

developers have received planning permission but these were not being 

built out.  Within the City Centre further support is required for brownfield 

sites due to fragile viability, and in certain cases sites have a higher flood 

risk.   

Page 13



 

4.8 MG advised that Nottingham City would be providing a separate response 

in addition to the joint response.  Other councils would also respond in 

their own right. These were confirmed as follows: 

 

NCC will be responding 

RBC will be responding to both consultations 

GBC will be submitting two separate responses 

ADC will respond to both consultations 

BBC will provide a separate response to both consultations 

 MG also noted to agree a joint response. 

4.9 MR (ADC) reinforced Cllr Woodings comment about financial pressures.  

He advised that ADC had amongst the lowest affordability for housing in 

the UK despite them requiring an increase of 69% in houses they needed 

to provide in the area.  They already have low house prices, and 

developers will not build even if it is in the Local Plan, they tend to cherry 

pick sites.  There are some good ideas in the White Paper but there was 

also a lot wrong with it. 

4.10 SBk (EBC) supported the changes for Sustainability Appraisals and to 

move away from the old system.  He was positive about the new strategic 

CIL.  He continued to say that the Local Plan was harder to adopt than 

giving planning permission as it takes five years to adopt a plan but local 

authorities are expected to grant planning permission within 13 weeks.  

He considered this change would help to restore a plan-led system. 

Government reform of the planning system should support regeneration. 

4.11 RU (RBC)  RBC accepts the need for more housing, and has led the way 

with its current local plan.  We need to enable young people renting who 

cannot buy affordable housing to get on the housing ladder.   With his 

previous knowledge and experience of the planning system as a 

Chartered Surveyor he has seen the planning system become more 

bureaucratic and slow.  It takes 5-7 years for a Local Plan to be approved 

therefore it needs radical reform.  Suggest a joint response and own 

responses as well. 

4.12 ME (N.City) found the proposals intriguing in terms of environmental 

challenges as the City faces a number of consequences of climate 

change, including flooding and urban over-heating.  However, high quality, 

sustainable and carbon neutral developments are what is needed.  The 

ability to convert premises to flats make no reference to the value of the 

offices, and do not contribute to affordable housing or local open space.  If 

it is less profitable then developers will just sit on the land.  The area 

needs housing solutions which are fit for the 21st Century.   

Page 14



4.13 MG will sum up the wide range of views to agree a joint response and 

respond to government, including any alternative suggestions that might 

be preferable. 

 

Joint Planning Advisory Board was resolved to: 

(a) CONSIDER the implications of the Government Consultations on the 
current planning system and on the Planning for the Future White Paper; 
and 

(b) DELEGATE the preparation of a joint response on matters of strategic 
interest where there is a consensus of view to the Executive Steering 
Group. 

 

5. Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan Update (Matt Gregory) 

 

5.1 MG gave an update on the plan making process which has been delayed 

due to Covid-19.  The Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan consultation has 

now been completed and responses are currently being assessed.  EBC 

have also completed their consultation and are assessing all 

representations received.  With regards to ADC’s Local Plan they are 

currently assessing their evidence base and the implications of the 

government’s proposed Standard Methodology for their area. 

5.2 An open letter was sent by a number of parish councils requesting 

suspension of the Growth Options consultation for the following reasons: 

(i) Covid-19 impact on consultation process 
(ii) Longer term impact of plans 
(iii) Is the Government’s White Paper appropriate for the future? 
(iv) Local communities have not had chance to challenge the evidence 

base of Local Plans 
 

 It was suggested that the Board responds as follows: 

(i) Government expects councils to continue with Local Plan 
preparation and has issued guidance how to undertake community 
involvement with current consultations being extended to allow 
more time to respond. 

(ii) Councils have less control over planning decisions where their 
Local Plans become out of date. 

(iii) Preparing flexible policies to respond to the issues and challenges 
arising from Covid 19. 

(iv) The White Paper proposals for changing the planning system are 
unlikely to be introduced quickly therefore for the interim there is a 
need to continue with Duty to Co-operate as this is still a legal 
requirement. 

(v) The ability to challenge key elements of the Growth Options Study 
was available during the public consultation. 

 

Page 15



MG asked for views on whether to continue with the plan making process 

for the Greater Nottingham. 

RU (RBC) gave their support to keep the plan moving along. 

MP (EBC) expressed his concern that we were running out of time and 

agreed with RBC.  There has been adequate time given for community 

involvement and EBC completed face to face meetings prior to the Covid 

restrictions.  Developers will force the process so we should not delay. 

LW (Nottingham City) agreed that it would be wrong to delay the process.  

Consultation time periods had been extended and for a vast majority 

consultation was available online, and people who did not have access to 

the internet at home were able to have access when some of the libraries 

reopened.  This virus situation could last for another 18+ months.  We 

need to be more imaginative how we consult and suggested using 

methods such as MS Teams. 

MG confirmed the consensus to provide a joint response for the reasons 

set out in the report for the Chair, Cllr Tony Harper, to send the letter on 

behalf of JPAB. 

5.3 MG referred to the reasons why Duty to Co-operate was still the best 

option for plan making in Greater Nottingham.  It remains law until it is 

replaced and until then it is important to continue.  Working in partnership 

has attracted additional resources such as HE Funding and has saved 

individual councils significant money. 

5.4  ME (Nottingham City) referred to para 7.6 regarding Gypsies and 

Travellers and how to address new ways to consult with their community.  

MG advised that results would be available in November as consultations 

were now able to take place.  The results of the study will inform the 

Strategic Plan Review. 

 

Joint Planning Advisory Board was resolved to: 

(a) NOTE the delay to progress with Strategic Plan preparation in Greater 

Nottingham and the situation with the Erewash Growth Options 

Consultation; and 

(b) AGREE that a joint response be prepared to the open letter appended to 
this report, explaining that the partner Councils consider it is important to 
continue the strategic plan making process for the reasons set out in 
section 4 of this report. 

 

6. Waste and Minerals Local Plans Update (Sally Gill/Steve Buffery) 

 

6.1 SG reported that the Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan was submitted 

to the Secretary of State earlier this year and had hoped for Examination 

at the end of April.  However due to lockdown restrictions the date has 

Page 16



had to be postponed until 26 October and will now be a virtual 

Examination although conducted in the same way as any other Local Plan 

Examination by the Planning Inspector. 

6.2 The Waste Local Plan will be a joint plan with Nottinghamshire County 

and Nottingham City Councils.  All comments are currently being looked 

at following the Issues and Options consultation and these will inform the 

first draft of the Waste Local Plan. 

6.3 SBuffery from Derbyshire County Council reported that their Minerals 

Local Plan was jointly being prepared with Derby City Council.  They have 

also experienced Covid-19 implications on progressing the Plan which 

has impacted on timescales.  The key change is to incorporate a sand 

and gravel document into the Plan upto 2036.  Due to a shortfall in sand 

and gravel sites being promoted there was a consultation to identify any 

additional sites suitable for allocation.  There are now an additional three 

sites making a total of eight sites overall which will now be consulted on. 

There will be an eight weeks consultation from October with a Derbyshire 

Minerals Local Plan anticipated early next year.  The Issues and Options 

consultation will be published towards the end of the year or early next 

year. 

6.4 ME asked if DCC had any information regarding a proposal for another 

incinerator in Derby, and if lessons could be learned from Nottinghamshire 

to ensure a more green approach to waste management.  SBuffery was 

unable to comment as the proposal falls within the Derby City Council 

area. 

 

Joint Planning Advisory Board was resolved to NOTE the progress with the 

Nottinghamshire/Nottingham and Derbyshire Waste and Minerals Local Plans. 

 

7. Homes England Capacity Funding projects monitoring  

 (Peter McAnespie) 

 

7.1 PMcA highlighted two references to note from the report.  GBC will need 

to address how they intend to progress with their remaining funding and 

EBC will need to provide information on how they intend to progress with 

the Stanton Regeneration site. 

7.2 Appendix 1 illustrated how the money has been spent for the period.  All 

other projects (except those mentioned above) are heading towards 

completion. 

7.3 MP explained that he was unable to provide an update on the Stanton site 

due to its current sensitive state with developers and landowners. 

 

Page 17



Joint Planning Advisory Board resolved to NOTE this report and the details set 

out in Appendix 1. 

8. Any other business 

 Nil   

9. Future Meetings 2020 

 DATE TIME VENUE 

Tuesday 15 December 2.00 pm 

Council Chamber, 

Ground Floor,  

Council Offices, Beeston  

(to be agreed) 

MEETING CLOSED AT 3.15 PM 

 

 

Page 18



 

Meeting: 
Date: 
From: 

JOINT COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING AND TRANSPORT 
05 March 2021 
Joint Officer Steering Group 

 
 
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE MINERALS LOCAL PLAN and  
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE AND NOTTINGHAM WASTE LOCAL PLAN  
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report informs committee of progress with preparing: 

 

 The Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan. 

 The Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan; 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
 Minerals 
 
2.1 The County Council is preparing a revised Minerals Local Plan.   It will cover 

the County area (policies for the City are included in its Land and Planning 
Policies document - Part 2 Local Plan).  

 
2.2 Following several stages of earlier consultation, the County Council published 

its draft Minerals Local Plan for formal consultation during September/October 
2019.  The Plan was submitted for examination in February 2020 and hearing 
sessions were held virtually in October 2020, having been postponed from April 
due to the COVID-19 outbreak.  The County Council subsequently published a 
schedule of proposed modifications to the Plan for comments to be made 
between 27 November 2020 and 8 January 2021.  The Council received 32 
representations which have been forwarded to the Planning Inspector for their 
consideration.   

 
2.3 The Council is now awaiting the outcome of the Inspector’s report once it is 

published. 
  

Waste 
 

2.4 The County and City Councils are preparing a single joint Waste Local Plan to 
replace the Waste Core Strategy adopted by both Councils in December 2013. 
An initial consultation on the new Local Plan, including a ‘Call for Sites’ was 
completed in May 2020 and generated 270 comments and nine suggested 
waste management sites.   Officers have compiled a summary of these 
responses which will feed into the next stage of the Waste Local Plan.   

 
2.5  It had been intended to brief the Members Working Group on the findings of the 

consultation exercise in Autumn 2020, but this was delayed due to the 
rescheduled Minerals Local Plan hearing sessions.   A meeting of the Working 
Group will now be scheduled for March/April this year.  Work is also being 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



commissioned to update the Council’s preliminary Waste Needs Assessment 
which will form an important part of the evidence base, ahead of the 
preparation of a Draft Plan for consultation. 

 
2.6 The County Council has recently updated its Local Development Scheme which 

anticipates consultation on a draft Waste Local Plan in Nov/Dec 2021. 
 
 Nottingham City Council will be updating its Local Development Scheme to 

reflect the consultation dates above in due course. 
 
3 RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 It is recommended that the Joint Committee note the contents of this report. 
 
4 BACKGROUND PAPERS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
Contact Officers 
 
Stephen Pointer 
Team Manager Planning Policy 
Nottinghamshire County Council 
 
Tel 0115 993 9388                  
Email: stephen.pointer@nottscc.gov.uk  
 
Matt Gregory 
Head of Planning Strategy and Building Control 
Development Department 
Nottingham City Council 
 
Tel: 0115 876 3974                 
Email: matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 20

mailto:stephen.pointer@nottscc.gov.uk
mailto:matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

Meeting: 
Date: 
From: 

JOINT COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING AND TRANSPORT 
March 2021 
Joint Officer Steering Group 

 
Transport Update 
 

1 SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update on the transport related issues across the 
Greater Nottingham conurbation. The report gives an update on the transport 
effects of the COVID – 19 crises as well as information regarding the Cycling 
improvement program, the development of the City Council’s LTP4 and an 
update on the Clifton Bridge works.  

 
2 Background   

 
Covid – 19 Transport update 
 
The City Council has been monitoring the transport network to understand the 
effects of the restrictions on travel brought in to control the Covid 19 outbreak. This 
monitoring has continued over the autumn / winter period. Nottingham was placed 
into Tier 3 restrictions on the 26th November 2020 and a full national lockdown 
commenced on the 4th Jan 2021.  Appendix 1 of this report contains a chart showing 
how these key events have affected the transport network. Using the data collected 
during this period we can report the following:  
 

 General traffic levels have fallen since the implementation of Tier 3 
restrictions from around 75% of normal levels to around 55 - 60% of normal 
levels.  

 Bus patronage was starting to rise to almost 50% of normal levels at the 
beginning of December however with the implementation of National 
Lockdown in January bus patronage has fallen to around 25% of normal 
levels.  

 Tram patronage is now trending at below 10% of normal levels.  
 
LTP4 Development.  
 
New transport policies for carbon neutrality  
 
The City Council is currently working to develop its next Local Transport Plan 
(LTP4). The current Local Transport Plan (LTP3) covers the period from 2011 to 
2026. However, many of the major policy goals covered in LTP3 have now been 
achieved – most notably the implementation of Work Place Parking Levy and the 
completion of NET lines 2 and 3. In late 2019 the City Council declared a climate 
emergency and launched its carbon neutral action plan which aims to achieve 
carbon neutrality by 2028.  
 
Although the overall level of carbon dioxide emissions from Nottingham have fallen 
in recent years. Carbon emissions from transport haven’t fallen as fast as other 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



sectors of the economy such as those from industry, commerce or residential 
emissions. Further analysis of data for Nottingham also shows that the majority of 
carbon emissions from transport comes from roads, and the majority of these 
emissions come from cars.  In light of this LTP4 will be focused heavily on supporting 
the City Council’s carbon neutrality aims by encourage more sustainable transport. 
Policy measures will cover six key areas, need to travel, active travel, public 
transport, freight, demand management, assets. The current and future policy 
framework is summarised in table 1 below:  
 
Table 1: policy framework  
Policy theme Current Measure  

 
LTP4 Measures  

Need to Travel  Location of new developments,  
Smart Working  
Teleconferencing  

Compelling home working, video 
conferencing in place of business 
travel  

Active Travel  Investment in footways/public realm 
Cycle Ambition programme 
Rights of Way Improvement Plan 
20 mph for all residential streets 
 

Walking and cycling for all short trips 
 

Public Transport  Bus Quality Partnership 
Tram/rail network 
Clean busses 
Smart ticketing 
 

Expanded PT networks 
Mobility As A Service 
Rail electrification/HS2 
Subsidised/free travel 
 

Freight  Cleaner vehicles 
 

Freight consolidation 
Drones 
 

Demand 
Management  

Behaviour Change 
Workplace Parking Levy 
 

Road User Charging 
ICE prohibitions 
 

Assets  Electric charging points 
Greener roads initiatives 
 

New technology 
Wireless charging 
Carbon Offsetting 
 

 
Analysis of emerging trends  
 
The City Council has been conducting a review of all available evidence to identify 
emerging trends and changes to travel patterns resulting from the Covid 19 
pandemic. The work has included a review of news and academic articles as well as 
an analysis of transport and economic data sets. The following trends have been 
identified:  

 Less commuting to the city centre more home working,  

 Reduced city centre footfall, greater footfall in local centres. This is reflected in 
vacancy rates for commercial properties,  

 Rise in second hand car sales,  

 Less demand for PT and Less traffic during the traditional peak periods. 
Instead demand remains more constant throughout the day,  

 Increased volume of HGV’s and light vans meeting demand for deliveries,  
 
Using this evidence, the City Council has been conducting workshops with key 
stakeholders to better understand how they plan to change their operations in future 
and how the demands on the transport network will change.  
 

Page 22



This work will be used to develop a number of scenarios that will be included in to 
LTP4. The plan will then seek to mitigate the some of the negative outputs shown in 
these scenarios and encourage the positive. The future scenario work will be 
completed by end March 2021 with the rest of LTP4 being written over the summer 
fo 2021 for completion in late summer / autumn 2021. 
 
 
Cycling Program Update  
 
This section of the report is about two major cycling investment packages the Active 
Travel Fund and the Transforming Cities Fund. 
 
Active Travel Fund (ATF) 
 
All ATF schemes have been targeted in areas where we believe significant benefit 
can be derived in response to restart and recovery, fit well with the bid criteria as well 
as being deliverable within the timescales for ATF. Schemes were selected that draw 
upon the Nottingham and Nottinghamshire elements of the D2N2 wide LCWIP, and 
complement the work we have begun to deliver through the Transforming Cities 
Fund (TCF). 
 
Building on the Tranche 1 bid a program was put to the DfT that comprised 
of packages that will: 
 

• Providing permanent segregated cycle corridors from residential areas into 
the city centre. 

• Extending the liveable neighbourhoods schemes to allow for safe social 
distancing in city and neighbourhood centres. 

• Supporting schools to re-open by creating traffic-free areas around schools 
and delivering a complementary behavioural change program. 

• Continuing to invest in parks and open spaces by widening and improving 
paths to allow for safe social distancing. 

• Investing in a series of supporting capital and revenue measures to inspire, 
encourage and facilitate more walking, cycling and e-scooting; and ‘lock-in’ 
this change in behaviour. 

 
The funding has been provided by the DfT but there is a criteria placed on Local 
Authorities that a comprehensive consultation methodology is in place and 
consultation has taken place by the end of March.  
 
(The consultation plan which was sent to the DfT is shown in Appendix 2)  
 
A list of schemes with the intimal budget allocated:  
Package 1: 

- Derby Road – £235,000 
- Porchester Road – 42,800 
- St Anns Wells Road - £150,000 
- Consultation website response - £171,200 
- A60 - £100,000 

 

Page 23



Package 2: 
- Reduced traffic neighbourhood Sherwood - £205,000 
- Arboretum reduced traffic neighbourhood - £100,000 
- City Centre 20mph Zone - £100,000 
- City centre reactive measures - £50,000 

 
Package 3 
- School streets - £250,000 
- School streets education and behaviour change - £155,000 
 
Package 4: 
Paths and green spaces 
- £170,000 
 
Package 5: 
- E-scooters - £100,000 
- Pop up community cycle centres - £45,000 
- Nottingham Bike Aid - £40,000 
- Monitoring cameras - £35,000 
- Park and cycle - £25,000 
- Pop up and make permanent cycle parking - £25,000 
- Cycle hub Broadmarsh - £25,000 
- Way and route finding videos - £15,000 
 
Total program value 
Capital - £1,780,000 
Revenue - £365,000 
Grand Total - £2,145,000 
Amount received – £2,039,000 
 
Transforming Cities Fund 
 
The Transforming Cities Fund program is focused on four key themes - City Centre 
Connectivity (focused on rail/bus station, city centre public realm and interchange 
facilities at key transport nodes), Strategic Derby – Nottingham – East Midlands 
Airport (EMA) connectivity, Nottingham urban growth corridors, and Derby urban 
growth corridors.  
 
Cycling is a key element of the packages and within the £161 million provided to 
both Nottingham and Derby £38 million is going towards cycling improvements 
between now and March 2023.  
 
The package includes strategic routes in the City and important cross city centre 
connections, cross boundary schemes and schemes within the County which officers 
from the City and County Councils will work together to deliver. This includes: 

- Corridor improvements along the A6005 as part of a longer cycle route 
between Nottingham and Derby,  

- Cycle route between the City and EMA,  
- Enhanced off carriageway cycle infrastructure on the A612  

Page 24



- Cross boundary connections in the form of a new pedestrian and cycle bridge 
with locations in the vicinity of the Waterside area currently being looked at.  

- Design work to look at improving walking and cycling routes over Lady Bay 
Bridge.  

 
There will also be enhanced connections to the Enterprise Zone which is on the 
City/County boundary and the important connections through the Enterprise Zone 
that will be opened up for walking and cycling.  
 
Clifton Bridge Update  
 
The latest position in terms on the ongoing works on Clifton Bridge is as follows: 
 
Full completion of all repair works is on track so that all lanes are expected to be 
reopened this Autumn. However, Highways England have confirmed it’s unlikely they 
will be able to reopen any further lanes until the Summer. This is because of the 
need for additional strengthening works to box 2 on the bridge span. See figure 1:  
 
Figure 1: new steel cables on the exterior of Clifton Bridge 

 
 
The repair involves fitting new steel cables on the exterior of the bridge, as well as 
replacing the steel and concrete we removed during our investigations inside the 
structure. Doing this will strengthen the structure and, because the new cables are 
on the outside, will allow for easier maintenance of the bridge in the future. 
 
Consequently, the current layout consisting of two southbound lanes is likely to 
remain until the end of June at the earliest when a third lane is expected to be 
opened. It is also unlikely that the Queens Drive on-slip will reopen before this date, 
which will have continued impacts to NCTs service 48.    
 
Highways England given assurances that they are bringing forward maintenance 
works planned on the bridge in future years, including waterproofing, resurfacing and 
re-jointing, which will be carried out over the next few months to avoid the need for 
further disruption in the future.    
 

Page 25



Traffic flows throughout the city are currently still below normal levels due to the 
pandemic so the immediate impact of this is not significant. Figure 2 below shows 
the current traffic layout, which is likely to remain in place until the summer.  
 
Figure 2: Current traffic arrangement on Clifton Bridge 

 
 
3 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
 It is recommended that the contents of this report be noted. 
 
 
 
Contact Officers 
Chris Carter, Development and Growth, Nottingham City Council 
Tel: 0115 8763940 
Email: chris.carter@nottinghamcity.gov.uk   
 
Kevin Sharman, Place Department, Nottinghamshire County Council 
Tel: 0115 9772970 
Email: kevin.sharman@nottscc.gov.uk 
  

Page 26

mailto:chris.carter@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:kevin.sharman@nottscc.gov.uk


  

Page 27



Appendix 1 Transport Charts.  

 
 
 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

09/03/20 09/04/20 09/05/20 09/06/20 09/07/20 09/08/20 09/09/20 09/10/20 09/11/20 09/12/20 09/01/21

Covid-19 Transport Impact 
Mode of travel by vehicle class in Nottingham 

Weekly flows expressed as a % of the equivalent weekly flow in week 
commencing 2 March 2020 

Car/Motor cycle LGV Bus HGV

Start of first lockdown 
Non essential shops reopened 

Pubs/restaurants reopened 

Schools reopened 

Start of Covid Tier restrictions 

Start of second lockdown 

End of second lockdown 
Start of Tier 3 restrictions 

Start of third lockdown 

P
age 28



 
 

 
  

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
110%
120%
130%
140%
150%

09/03/20 09/04/20 09/05/20 09/06/20 09/07/20 09/08/20 09/09/20 09/10/20 09/11/20 09/12/20 09/01/21

Covid-19 Transport Impact 
Mode of travel in Nottingham 

Weekly flows/numbers expressed as a % of the equivalent weekly 
flow/number in week commencing 2 March 2020 

 

Pedestrians Cyclists All motor vehicles NCT bus passengers Tram passengers

Start of first lockdown 
Start of second lockdown 

Start of third lockdown 

End of second lockdown 
Start of Tier 3 restrictions 

Schools reopened 

Non essential shops reopened 

Pubs/restaurants reopened 

Start of Covid Tier restrictions 

P
age 29



Appendix 2: Cycling Consultation Plan  
 

Nottingham City Active Travel Fund Consultation Plan 2020/21 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 When implementing our Active Travel Fund (ATF) programme we will 
consider the impact on all road users, taking into account the need to provide 
for increased walking and cycling. Different types of intervention will be 
appropriate in different parts of the city depending of the urban landscape and 
nature of the residential and business development in the area.  

1.2 The Emergency Active Travel Fund (EATF) programme in the summer/ 
autumn of 2020 had very short funding timescales, which meant that the 
Council had to introduce schemes on a trial basis with limited time available 
for substantial consultation in advance 

1.3 The ATF programme will allow us to develop some of the EATF trial schemes 
and allow new schemes to be considered.  The programme has a longer 
delivery deadline, which will enable in-depth consultation to be undertaken 
before schemes are implemented.  This will enable scheme developers to 
take account of feedback received and amend the schemes where possible.  
The consultation methods employed will use some of the toolkit of measures 
that have been developed and used since the beginning of the Council’s 
Cycling Ambition project in 2015. 

1.4 This consultation plan sets out how we propose to engage with residents and 
stakeholders before and during scheme implementation (see Appendix A).  
The programme has a wide variety of different types of schemes in different 
geographic areas from pedestrian/cycle improvements in Sherwood/Berridge 
in the north east, to the city centre 20mph zone and School Streets citywide. 
As such, the Council will tailor consultation to suit the individual scheme and 
location. 

2.0 Citywide Engagement on the ATF Programme 

 

a. At the programme level, key messages will be delivered to increase 
awareness of the ‘bigger picture’ of what Active Travel means within the City 
of Nottingham.   This will focus on the important message that the schemes 
are ‘trials’ that can either be amended, removed or retained.  It will also set 
out how these schemes will link to the Transforming Cities Fund Tranche 2 
programme. 

What will be done? 
2.2 Key messages will highlight: 

 the benefits of more active travel, including through statistics around public health, 

personal wellbeing, air quality and local case studies; 

 how schemes, both individually and together, will encourage people to travel more 

actively, and in turn support a greener recovery from Covid-19 for the local 

economy; 

Page 30



 how increased active and sustainable travel is key to the city’s Carbon Neutral 2028 

ambition. 

How this will be done 
2.3 We will provide regular updates through our own channels during the design and 

delivery of the ATF programme, with information hosted on our website as a central 

reference point. We will be making greater use of local channels, including ward-based 

Facebook and community groups, to help information reach harder to reach audiences 

3.0 Proposed Scheme Consultation Package 

 

3.1 All consultation will follow basic principles, including: 
 

 Open and transparent two-way communication  

 Early notice of proposed changes and opportunity to comment 

 Communications use plain English and easy to understand visuals  
 

3.2 The ATF consultation toolkit will include could include but not limited to - on line 

consultation, letter/leaflet drops to affected residents and businesses, newsletters, 

public meetings and drop in sessions, social media contacts, website portal, media 

briefings, surveys/questionnaires and electronic roadside signs. We will continue to 

use these tried and tested means within the limitations of Covid 19 restrictions. 

 

Engaging Stakeholder groups 

 

3.3 We have a broad range of stakeholders who have varying levels of interest in and 

influence over our scheme designs. These are summarised in the example 

engagement matrix in Annex A. 

 

3.4 The Cycling & Walking Advisory Group (CAWAG), which is chaired by one of our 

stakeholders, will be contacted during scheme development.  The group has 

representatives invited from Sustrans, Cycling UK, British Cycling, Ridewise 

sustainable transport charity, Pedals cycling action group, Nottingham Bike Works, 

Nottinghamshire Police, Highways England, Public Health, Active Nottinghamshire, 

the Local Access Forum (which we also contact direct).  Council officers discuss 

cycling and walking policies and programmes and share details on specific proposals.  

The group give feedback on these issues from their respective viewpoints. 

 

TRO/ETRO processes 

 
3.5 The Traffic Regulation Order process includes a level of formal consultation. 

Objections to orders are reported to the Cabinet Member for Transport and 

can lead to changes in a scheme they are related to or ultimately cancellation 

of it.  For Permanent and Experimental Orders, the City Council exceeds the 

level of consultation required by legislation. 

 

For all orders: 

Page 31



 We consult with appropriate local councillors 

 Then we formally consult with registered stakeholders, including emergency 

services, utilities, Royal Mail, public transport operators etc. 

 We distribute consultation letters and plans to properties immediately adjacent 

to proposals involving Orders 

 Proposals can be viewed on NottinghamTraffweb website during notice period 

(generally 28 days for TROs, 6 months at least for ETROs)) 

 Advertisement of notice of proposals in local newspaper and placed on site 

 Proposals available to view at Central Library and Loxley House Council 

Offices (not applicable during current pandemic) from date of advertisement 

until 6 weeks after the Order has been made (or made permanent for ETROs) 
 

For Temporary Orders – we place an advertisement of notice in the local 
newspaper no less than 7 days prior to day restrictions come into effect. Further 
advertisement of second notice in local paper prior to restrictions coming into 
effect. Inform adjacent residents why the restrictions are needed. 

4.0 New Ways of Consultation 

 
Engagement through partners (School Streets and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods) 
4.1 The Council is proposing to appoint Sustrans to develop and deliver behaviour 

change and education initiatives in support of the School Streets roll out.  Within 

this, we have allowed for up to three community co-design sessions linked to 
new School Streets/low traffic neighbourhoods. 

4.2 Sustrans will also engage with residents, businesses, organisations, local road users 
and other interested parties in agreeing the design and operation of a low traffic 
neighbourhood in the Arboretum and potentially in Sherwood/Berridge  

4.3 Innovative methods of engagement will be required during various levels of 
pandemic restrictions. Organisations like Sustrans and Ridewise have very active 
lines of communication to groups, community networks and service users across the 
areas of our community cycle centres. Typically, these people would not normally 
engage in consultations. We will work with our partners, including a number of 
disability friendly and BAME groups, to look at how they could support us in getting 
their input. We want to get the views of the often-silent majority, which the DfT has 
also stressed in recent meetings with us.  Although we encourage everyone to 

reply with their opinions, it is known that people are more likely to contact the 
Council to object to a proposal rather than support it. This means the number 
of people objecting may represent only a small fraction of everyone with an 
opinion, which may be more positive but not expressed.  We cannot assume 
the replies are fully representative of the wider population and treat the 
consultation as a referendum.  We directly engage with any objectors to find a 
workable solution, which resolves their objection.  If this is not possible, we 
escalate any remaining objections to the relevant Portfolio Holder for a final 
decision. 

Web based consultation 
 
4.4 For EATF the Council set up a trial Heatmap website with Commonplace - “Let’s Keep 

Nottingham Moving Safely”. We asked users of paths and roads in the city to 
highlight their concern about cycling and walking in the City. To date the site has 

Page 32



been visited 1500 times and we have received over 340 comments. Council officers 
have reviewed these comments and put their responses on the website. We will 
maintain this for ATF.  For ATF we will have pages on Commonplace for 

specific schemes to set out plans and proposals.  This will allow people to 
leave comments on the scheme and engage with the Council. 

 
Use of research 
4.5 Analysis of the views of users of the N3 Western Cycle Corridor in the city by 

the Council and Nottingham Trent University (NTU) has provided powerful 
local evidence to help inform the initial consultation on schemes and target 
communications. Understanding the motivations and barriers of different 
groups of citizens with respect to cycling on a local level will enable the 
appropriate messaging to be tailored for each group in both the initial 
consultation and then the behaviour change communications to maximise the 
eventual beneficial impacts of the interventions. The Council will continue to 
work with NTU to develop our understanding of underlying motivations for 
cycling and the differing segmentation of citizens regarding their attitude to 
and propensity for cycling.  We will also draw on feedback from the Covid 
Travel survey the Council undertook in the city 

 
Approvals 

1. Council’s Executive Board to approve this Consultation Plan on 15thDecember 

2020 along with the ATF2 programme  

2. Before starting a scheme, a senior representative of the Council will write to 

the DfT with the outcome of the consultation and changes made as a result. 

3. Consult in 2021 on the draft final D2N2 Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure 

Plan (LCWIP), which includes a 15-year programme for Nottingham, then 

approve the final document. 

- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

Annex A:  Consultation Flow Chart and Stakeholder Engagement 
Matrix 

Diag. 1 Consultation Flow Chart 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Diag. 2 Example Stakeholder Engagement Matrix (based on a commonly used tool) 

Page 34



In
fl

u
e

n
ce

 

H
ig

h
e

r 

Higher influence/lower interest* 
Keep informed** 
 
Local MPs (3 within the City); others 
outside where their constituents are 
affected by our schemes. 
Highways England 
Public Health 
Nottinghamshire County Council 
 
*More interest where directly affected 
**As appropriate 

Higher influence/higher interest 
Manage closely 
 
NCC Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Transport 
NCC Ward councillors 
Emergency services (Police, EMAS, Fire & Rescue) 
Local media 
Public Transport operators 
Universities 
NCC teams – Network Management, Highways, 
Road Safety; Traffic; Transport Strategy, Parks, 
Planning, Equalities 
 

Lo
w

e
r 

Lower influence/lower interest 
Monitor 
 
Royal Mail/delivery companies; Utilities 
Nottingham City Homes 
Hospitals 
 
 
 
 

Lower influence/higher interest 
Keep informed & engaged 
 
Disability groups (DIG) 
Residents 
Businesses and business groups (FSB, CQ, BID) 
Schools and parents.  
Cycling and active travel partners (Ridewise, 
Sustrans, Active Nottinghamshire, British Cycling, 
CAWAG, Canal & River Trust) 
Cyclists – including local groups, eg Pedals, 
Pedestrians – including local groups, Local Access 
Forum 
Motorists 
Neighbouring District Councils 

 Lower 
 

Higher 

 
Interest 

NB This list is not exhaustive 

DfT ATF consultation requirements: 
1. Consult all key local stakeholders 
2. Obtain broad support for our schemes and made any changes to take account 

of local feedback 
3. Implement a clear communications plan to deal with any concerns/objections 

raised 
4. Discuss plans with local MPs and provide a summary of their responses to the 

DfT  
 
  

Page 35



 

Page 36



Meeting: 

Date: 

From: 

JOINT COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING AND TRANSPORT 

05 March 2021 

Joint Officer Steering Group 

 

Work Programme  

 

1 SUMMARY 

 

1.1 To consider the Committee’s work programme for June and September 2021. 

 

2 BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 The Joint Committee work programme will assist the management of the 

committee’s agenda, the scheduling of the committee’s business and forward 

planning.  The work programme will be updated and reviewed at each pre-

agenda meeting and committee meeting. Any member of the committee is able 

to suggest items for possible inclusion.  

 

2.2 The work programme to September 2021 is attached for the consideration of 

the Committee.   

 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

3.1 That the Joint Committee’s work programme be noted and consideration be 

given to any future items.  

 

3.2 That Joint Committee identify any work areas where partnership working 

between the two authorities would be mutually beneficial. 

 

 

Contact Officers  

 

Matt Gregory 

Head of Planning Strategy and Building Control 

Nottingham City Council  

 

Tel: 0115 876 3974 

Email: matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

 

Sally Gill 

Group Manager Planning 

Nottinghamshire County Council  

 

Tel: 0115 993 2608 

Email: sally.gill@nottscc.gov.uk 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8

mailto:matt.gregory@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:sally.gill@nottscc.gov.uk


JOINT COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING AND TRANSPORT  

WORK PROGRAMME: MARCH 2021 TO SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

Report Title Brief summary of agenda item Decision or 
Information? 

Lead Officer Report Author 

June 2021     

Minerals Local Plan 
Update 

To provide an update on progress with preparing the 
Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan 
 

Information Stephen Pointer Steven Osborne 
James 

Joint Waste Local 
Plan Update 

To provide an update on progress with preparing the 
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Waste Local Plan 
 

Information Stephen Pointer 
/ Matt Gregory 

Stephen Pointer /  
Matt Gregory 

Transport Update To provide an update on key sustainable transport 
issues (including rail issues) for the Greater 
Nottingham area 
 

Information Chris Carter / 
Kevin Sharman 

James Ashton / 
Kevin Sharman 

Greater Nottingham 
JPAB Update 
 

To provide an update on the work of JPAB. Information Matt Gregory Matt Gregory 

September 2021     

Minerals Local Plan 
Update 

To provide an update on progress with preparing the 
Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan 
 

Information Stephen Pointer Steven Osborne / 
James Ashton 

Joint Waste Local 
Plan Update 

To provide an update on progress with preparing the 
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Waste Local Plan 
 

Information Stephen Pointer 
/ Matt Gregory 

Stephen Pointer /  
Matt Gregory 

Transport Update To provide an update on key sustainable transport 
issues (including rail issues) for the Greater 
Nottingham area 
 

Information Chris Carter / 
Kevin Sharman 

James Ashton / 
Kevin Sharman 

Greater Nottingham 
JPAB Update 
 

To provide an update on the work of JPAB. Information Matt Gregory Matt Gregory 

 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Greater Nottingham Joint Planning Advisory Board update
	6 Nottinghamshire Minerals Local Plan and Nottinghamshire and Nottingham Waste Local Plan update
	7 Transport update
	8 Work Plan

